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The group (“Group”) continues to execute its principal strategy
of developing new products in the High Definition (“HD”) video
surveillance system. We firmly believe that HD video surveillance
systems shall dominate the market in the near future. To set the trend
of technological advancements, several new HD cameras were launched
during the year and we strive for more releases to follow in the coming
year. The Group aims to build up a comprehensive range of HD products
that covers a large variety of cameras, standalone HD video recording
servers, large scale personal computer based video recording servers,
video management software and mobile applications for smart phones
in the market. To successfully execute our development plan, we have
expanded our research and development team to speed up the process and

stay ahead in the industry.

The market response to our new HD cameras and recording software
is indeed positive. To further capitalise, we have strengthened our
marketing efforts so as to educate the market and push for better sales.
Unfortunately, the global market condition this year was overcast by
unfavorable events such as the debt crisis in the developed world,
public unrest in numerous countries and a major earthquake in Japan
that disrupted the supply chain. While the sales of our HD products
were growing, the overall demands for our products were weak.
Unsurprisingly, competition was especially keen for systems using analog

video surveillance cameras.

The road ahead is full of uncertainties. We do not see the debt crisis to
be resolved in the near future. To stay ahead amid difficulties, our ability
to develop innovative products and new sales channels will be the key to

our future growth.
I would like to thank our dedicated team for perseverance and hard work,

business partners and shareholders for their continual support in this time
of difficulty.

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 16 September 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$45,693,000, representing a decrease of about 9.7%
as compared with the turnover of about HK$50,616,000 of the preceding
year. Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2011 amounted to approximately HK$1,206,000 (2010:
HKS$1,525,000). Basic earnings per share for the year ended 30 June
2011 was HK$13.36 cents (2010: HK$16.91 cents).

As a result of the Group’s tight control on overhead costs, overall
operating costs during the year was down by approximately 7% to
HK$22,468,000 as compared to HK$24,230,000 in the previous year. The

Group’s financial position remains strong with substantial liquidity.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, there was a prominent tumble in business in the Middle
East which negatively affected the overall performance of the Group. The
wide spread of public unrest in the Middle East region combined with the
debt crisis in Dubai adversely affected our business in the region. The
business in Europe has recovered modestly and other regions remained
stable.

We launched more HD video surveillance products this year and
consequently the sales in HD products grew rapidly. However, its

contribution to the overall revenue is still small.

In response to the major earthquakes in Japan, we have increased our
electronic component inventory to avoid disruption in production. With
the current sluggish sales, it would take some time to bring down the

inventory level to normal.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Asia

Turnover for Asia (inclusive of Hong Kong, Singapore, Middle East
and other Asian countries) as a whole for the year ended 30 June
2011 lost 23% to approximately HK$22,584,000 as compared to about
HK$29,387,000 achieved in the preceding year. It accounted for 49%
(2010: 58%) of the Group’s turnover. The drop in turnover in this region

as the result of market condition in Middle East countries.

Europe

Turnover for Europe for the year ended 30 June 2011 rose by 13% to
approximately HK$11,336,000 (2010: HK$10,055,000). It accounted for
25% (2010: 20%) of the Group’s turnover.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Africa

Business in Africa mainly came from our operations in South Africa
and Mauritius. Turnover for Africa for this year decreased by 3% to
approximately HK$9,656,000 (2010: HK$9,947,000). It accounted for
21% (2010: 20%) of the Group’s turnover. The performance in this

region was relatively stable.

Others

Other geographic region mainly included the Americas and Australia.
It has contributed to about 5% (2010: 2%) of the Group’s total turnover
this year, which amounted to approximately HK$2,117,000 (2010:
HKS$1,227,000).

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

During the year, we have launched the following new products:

3 models of MX HD video cameras

1 model of TeleEye HD sureREC video recording system

3 mobile applications for iPhone and iPad

1 professional HD video management software, TeleEye sureSIGHT Pro
5 models of ultra hi-resolution analog video cameras

12 models of standard resolution analog video cameras

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

During the first half of the coming year, we will launch the GX series
of standalone HD video recording servers and new models of the MX
700 series, which are low lux HD video cameras. This is intended to
substantially strengthen our range of HD products and improve our
competitive edge in the market. The Group will continue to strive hard in
its marketing efforts to capture as much market share of HD surveillance
as possible. The new products will potentially help TeleEye to establish

new sales channel in more countries.

The public unrest in the Middle East is settling down and hopefully a
recovery will begin soon. Our sales and marketing team will implement
strategic plans in the region to bring our business back to a growing path.
Regarding the developed countries with high debt, it could take years to
reduce public debt to a healthy level and return to a growing economy.
However, with our comprehensive range of HD products combined
with intensified marketing efforts, the management is optimistic on an

improved market penetration.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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DIVIDENDS
The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) does not recommend the
payment of dividend for the year ended 30 June 2011 (2010: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2011, the Group employed 44 (2010: 41) full time
employees in Hong Kong and 12 (2010: 11) full time employees in
China and overseas offices. The Group’s staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, employees’ salaries, share-based payments and retirement
benefits scheme contribution amounted to approximately HK$17,135,000
(2010: HK$16,165,000).

Employees are remunerated in accordance with individual’s responsibility
and performance, which remain competitive with the prevailing market
rates. Other fringe benefits such as medical insurance, retirement benefit
scheme and discretionary bonus are offered to all employees. Share
options are granted at the directors’ discretion and under the terms and

conditions of share option schemes.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

The Group mainly used its internal resources to finance its operations
during the year. The Group had bank balances, deposits and cash of
approximately HK$15,719,000 as at 30 June 2011 (30 June 2010:
HK$19,586,000). The Group’s gearing ratio as at 30 June 2011 was 0%
(30 June 2010: 0%).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not enter into any new significant investment during the

year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES
The Group did not make any material acquisitions and disposal of

subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2011, the Group did not have any charge on its assets (30
June 2010: Nil).
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FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS
Up to the current moment, the Group does not have any other plan for

material investments or capital assets.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGES

During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were substantially
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and British Pounds.
During the year under review, the Group did not use any financial

instruments for hedging purposes (30 June 2010: Nil).
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2011, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities (30
June 2010: Nil).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT #3 K4\ Bfdi/r

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prof. Chan Chok Ki, aged 56, is the founder and Chief Executive
Officer of TeleEye Holdings Limited and an adjunct professor of The
City University of Hong Kong (“City University”). TeleEye Group was
Hong Kong’s first university spin-off company to become a public listed
company. Prior to managing the Group on a full-time basis in 2001,
Prof. Chan had lectured at the City University for fifteen years. He has
published extensively in signal and image processing fields and has
received numerous awards including the IEEE Third Millennium Award
in 2000. In 1996, the EDN ASIA Magazine also named him an “EDN
ASIA Innovator” for his contributions in image compression research.
TeleEye Group has also won numerous awards in product innovation and
business areas including the Gold Award (Security Category) 2007 by
HKEIA and the 2007 Hong Kong Top Brand Award from the Hong Kong
Brand Development Council and the Chinese Manufacturer’s Association.
Prof. Chan is also a council member of the Hong Kong Productivity

Council.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit, aged 43, is a founder and the Chief Marketing Officer
of the Group. He has extensive knowledge on digital signal processing
and telecommunications technologies. He is presently responsible for
formulation and implementation of marketing strategies, product pricing
and positioning, and strategic management of channel distribution for the

Group.

Dr. Ma is a member in the executive committee and a sub-committee

Chairman of The Hong Kong Security Association.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours and a PhD

degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

Mr. Ho Ka Ho, aged 39, is a founder and the Engineering Director of the
Group. He is in charge of the engineering department of the Group and is
responsible for product design, quality control, research and development
of the Group. Mr. Ho has expertise in computer architecture, software

engineering and digital signal processing.

Mr. Ho obtained his bachelor of engineering degree in computer
engineering with first class honours and master of science degree in

electronic engineering from the City University.

Ry

B AR 3 B3 » BLAE 5605 > 2y T BLIRHE IR AT IR A A
WEN AT B A - 6 2 B s T 2 ([ kT R )
AR HAZ o T HIREH 5 F W 1 KX H KRBT
AT EWAT o fE " EE AR EAER
il > PR G SAE T R BAL 20 T 1U4F - 2
A B B R R A5 B T 5 IR O
G BT REN B S E T TR E 6 19 [EEE
Third Millennium Award ° 4 —JLIL7S 4 > 1% EDN
RN A G A T EDN R BRI R | > DL R HB S
JEE A F 5% ) B R - T L AR AR M R R 22 TR AT E S A1
BRI MR > R B FLIEFBETE
T BRI B A T (DRZEJR A s 88 > DL RO s
B R JR 0 A v o HE g A | T A R 2 2007 4R A
W20 S o BRI IR B B A E IR R N ZE A
FINE -

B > BUAE 435 - S A SR AN K T AR
S o B WA AR 5% R F % 7R RRL B HL A R Z AL o
8 B 05 B B O E D BAULAT T O A SR SR~ E A M
TENL DA S B ] 5y 6 TRAE 2 R T

EHERATERLERGRITZEGRE LPAZE
BE LR -

B 1 L A T R BV R T TR — AR AR B
PSR IS

P S Se k> BUAE39 B T A S A A
(L) o PIRT AL TRBM 2 £E > ARAE
Wi 2 E b B B BT PR o (BRI
TN~ PR R L MRS R B B 5 T B A
o

i S A SR AR A T R B R TR — AR AR TR I TR AR
LB > UURE T TR LA

Annual Report 2011 43t | TeleEye Holdings Limited T B4 FR2 7

9



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT #3 KA Bfdi/r

10

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, aged 53, is a founder and a research and
development consultant of the Group, responsible for spearheading the
research and development team on a part-time basis with particular focus
on product design and development. Dr. C.F. Chan is a research veteran

in the digital signal processing and speech compression technology.

Dr. C.F. Chan is presently an associate professor of the Department of
Electronic Engineering at the City University. He is also a Director of
Signal Communications Holdings Limited and Signal Communications

Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

In 1998, he was named “EDN Asia Innovator” by the EDN Asia

Magazine for his contribution in speech compression technology.

He received all his bachelor, master and PhD degrees in electronic

engineering from The University of Essex, England.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Hon To, David, aged 63, is an independent (“Independent”)
non-executive (“Non-Executive”) Director of the Company who was
appointed in January 2007. Mr. Yu is the Vice Chairman of MCL
Partners Limited, a Hong Kong-based financial advisory and investment
firm. He also sits on the boards of several other listed companies in
Hong Kong. He was formerly a partner of an international accounting
firm with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

Prof. Siu Wan Chi, aged 61, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
who was appointed in September 2000. He is presently Chair Professor
of the Department of Electronic and Information Engineering and
Director of the Centre for Signal Processing, The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He was the Head of the same department and Dean of

Engineering Faculty between 1994 and 2002.

Prof. Siu has held numerous public offices in the academic field
including member of editorial board of renowned journals in the U.S.
and the PRC, general chair of world-class international conferences, and
Chairman of academic/professional assessment panels. Prof. Siu obtained
his master of philosophy degree from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, and the PhD degree from Imperial College of Science, Technology
and Medicine, University of London, UK.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT #3 K4\ Bfdi/r

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Prof. Ching Pak Chung, BBS, aged 57, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director who was appointed in October 2004. Prof. Ching is
presently Pro-Vice-Chancellor and Director of the Shun Hing Institute
of Advanced Engineering of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(“CUHK”). He was elected Dean of Engineering from 1998 till end of
2003. Prof. Ching pursued his studies at the University of Liverpool of
United Kingdom. He received his bachelor’s degree (first class honors)
and doctoral degree in 1977 and 1981 respectively. Then, he continued
his research at School of Electrical Engineering of the University of
Bath and was back to Hong Kong in 1982, when he started teaching
at the Department of Electronic Engineering of the then Hong Kong
Polytechnic. In 1984, Prof. Ching joined the Department of Electronic
Engineering of CUHK and was promoted to Chair Professor in 1999.

Prof. Ching has all along participated actively in various professional
activities. Besides serving in different capacities for the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, and the Institute of Electrical and Electronic
Engineers, he was an elected Council Member of the Institution of
Electrical Engineers between 2002 and 2005. Prof. Ching also devotes
his time on public services. He was a member of the Consumer Council,
Chairman of the Hong Kong Accreditation Advisory Board, a member
of the Electrical Safety Advisory Committee, a Council member of the
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, a member of the Copyright
Tribunal and a panel member of the Research Grants Council of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“SAR”). He is currently Chairman
of the Hong Kong Council for Testing and Certification and member
of the Steering Committee on Innovation and Technology. In 2010, he
was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Hong Kong SAR
Government for his contribution to the development of innovation and
technology as well as promotion of testing and certification industry in

Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 15 of
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) Listing Rules (the “Code”)
takes effect from 1 January 2005. Except for the deviations as disclosed
on this report, the Company has complied with the Code by establishing
a formal and transparent procedures to protect and maximise the interests

of shareholders throughout the year under review.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the Company has adopted a code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities

transactions by Directors adopted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director are set out on
the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this

annual report.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall strategic
development of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance and
internal control of the Group’s business operations. Executive Directors
are responsible for running the Group and executing the strategies
adopted by the Board. The Board delegates day-to-day activities to the
management with department heads responsible for different aspects of
the business. Management is required to present an annual budget and
any proposal for major investments and changes in business strategies for

the Board’s approval.

The Non-Executive Directors serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board meetings.
They are also serving on audit committee and remuneration committee.
Through their active participation, they provide their valuable skills,
expertise and experience to the Board and the committees on which they
serve so that the management process can be critically reviewed and

controlled.
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In compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-Executive Directors
and at least one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent. Each Independent Non-Executive
Director is required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if

there is any change that may affect his independence.

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Company. There were five regular board
meetings held in the financial year ended 30 June 2011. Details of the

attendance of the Board are as follows:

TSP CRIZEMR F i BRI SR 5.05(1) B (2) I » AR ]
CRE=ZB L IFRITES > S hEd>— ARA
AHHEFEER KGR ERER - AN A
B e 3 45 44 8 7 FF A T SR AR BRI A T T LRI
555,09 W 2 BLE 5 AT B B M SRR o A
N ) Ry T A M ST I AT SE S L Nt o ik
BUAT AT Al e 5 8 HL S ME 2 S W) > 4% B ar JE AT
WA E AT DL N S PCE A A A o

HEHRGGREGERHED IR > Ukgs AN R 2 B
BB R RE T ——FNH =T HIEME
LB R ENER G G® - ARERGHE
FERAR

Attended/Eligible to attend

Name of Directors WLk # WR A B %

Executive Directors TR

Prof. Chan Chok Ki I AE L 247 5/5
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (TR FETTIECRE )

Dr. Ma Chi Kit S 3/5

Mr. Ho Ka Ho IR EE et 5/5

Non-Executive Director FPfTHER

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat BRRE I 4/5

Independent Non-Executive Directors B e PuAT e

Mr. Yu Hon To, David AT E oA 4/5

Prof. Siu Wan Chi [ BIRGEE €53 4/5

Prof. Ching Pak Chung TR 8% 4/5

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and
formulate the overall strategies of the Company, review and monitor the
business and financial performances and discuss the quarterly, half-yearly
and annual results, as well as discuss and decide on other significant
matters. The company secretary records the proceedings of each Board
meeting by keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions by the
Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if
any). Draft of Board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comment
and approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are

open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by any Director.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1. stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established and set out in

writing.

At present, Prof. Chan Chok Ki is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the
Board and the Group’s business. Prof. Chan has been both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since its incorporation. The
Board considers that Prof. Chan has in-depth knowledge in the Group’s
business and can make appropriate decisions promptly and efficiently.
The combination of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
can effectively formulate and implement the Group’s strategies. The
Board also considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board of Directors, which comprises experienced and
high caliber individuals, meets regularly to discuss issues affecting the
operations of the Group. The Group considers that, at its present size,
there is no imminent need to segregate the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer.

Non-Executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Code Provision A.4.2
stipulates that all Directors appointed to fill a causal vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment, and every Director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three

years.

At present, the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. In
addition, not every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Directors are subject to rotation in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company (that at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third, shall retire from office) provided that notwithstanding
anything therein, the Chairman of the Board and/or the managing
Director of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject
to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining the
number of Directors to retire in each year. As such, with the exception
of the Chairman, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The Board
considers that the continuity of office of the Chairman provides the
Group a strong and consistent leadership and is of great importance to the
smooth operations of the Group. Therefore, for stability reasons, there is
no imminent need to amend the Articles of Association of the Company.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

No nomination committee was established by the Company.

The Board is mainly responsible for identifying suitable candidates for
members of the Board when there is a vacancy or any additional Director
is considered necessary. The Board will review the qualifications of the
relevant candidate for determining the suitability to the Group on the

basis of his qualifications, experience and background.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is supported by
two Board committees. Each committee has its defined scope of duties
and terms of reference and the committee members are empowered
to make decisions on matters within the terms of reference of each

committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the

mandatory provisions set out in the Code.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly
reports and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comment
thereon to the Board. The audit committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting and internal
control procedures of the Group. The audit committee has four
members comprising the three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and
Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive Director, namely
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat. Mr. Yu Hon To, David, is the Chairman of

the audit committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

ey

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR# A 2 ]

Audit Committee (continued) (€))
The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results for the year

ended 30 June 2011 have been reviewed by the audit committee.

It has also reviewed the audited financial statements for the year

ended 30 June 2011 with management and the Company’s external

auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board. The audit
committee had held four meetings during the current financial year.
Individual attendance of each Committee member at these meetings

is as follows:

Name of Directors WYL
Non-Executive Director FepAT e
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat PRAE 3 8+
Independent Non-Executive Directors LR SRR
Mr. Yu Hon To, David ATV oA
Prof. Siu Wan Chi IR B
Prof. Ching Pak Chung FAA h H A%

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings,
draft and final versions of audit committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the audit committee for comments,

approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The members of the audit committee are granted the authority to
full and unlimited access to all books and accounts of the Company
and any employees, consultants and advisers they may, from time

to time, wish to consult.

The main duties of the audit committee are as follows:

. Reviewing, in draft form, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and providing

advice and comments thereon to the Board. In this regard:

. members of the committee must liaise with the Board,
senior management and the person appointed as the
Company’s qualified accountant and the committee
must meet, at least once a year, with the Company’s

auditors without the presence of the management; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

1)

(2)

Audit Committee (continued)

. the committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in such reports and accounts and must give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s qualified accountant, compliance officer

or auditors.

. Reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting

and internal control procedures.

. Reviewing the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience as well as training programmes of the Group’s

accounting and financial reporting function.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in specific terms of

reference which is posted on the Group’s website.

Remuneration Committee
According to the Code, the Company has established a
remuneration committee in September 2005 and the primary
duties of the remuneration committee are to formulate and make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration. The
remuneration committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung,
and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat.
The Chairman of the committee is Dr. Chan Cheung Fat. It is
scheduled to meet at least once a year and the quorum necessary

for the transaction of business is two.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the financial
year under review. The committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of service contracts of the Directors and considers
that the existing terms of the service contracts are fair and

reasonable.

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee is

posted on the Group’s website.

HRFRHG ()

1)

(2)
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the performance of external auditors, the audit fee, and any question of
resignation or dismissal. The external auditors’ fee is to be negotiated
with management of the Company, and annually analyzed for the
audit committee’s review. The audit committee is also responsible for
reviewing the extent of non-audit services provided by the external

auditors in relation to their independence.

The remuneration paid or payable in respect of services provided by the
external auditors for the year ended 30 June 2011 and 2010 is analysed

as follows:

Annual audit AR RN
Non-audit services IF 1 R
— quarterly/interim result review — FJF PR

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and in presenting the quarterly and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders, the
Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the

Company’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities in preparing financial statements and the
auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report

on page 27 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal control
periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal control system.
The Company convened meetings periodically to discuss financial,
operational and risk management control. The audit committee has
discussed the internal control process with the management of the

Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

The external auditor performs independent statutory audit on the Group’s
financial statements. As part of the audit engagement, the external
auditor also reports to the audit committee any significant deficiencies in
the Group’s internal control system which might come to their attention
during the course of audit. The external auditor noted no significant
internal control deficiencies in their audit for the financial year ended 30
June 2011.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Board of Directors of the Company believe that good corporate
governance can safeguard the effective allocation of resources and
safeguard shareholders’ interests. The Company will keep on reviewing
its corporate governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the
required practices and standards including the provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company with its shares listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. The principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2011 are set out in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 29.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group

during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 22 to the

financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in Note

23 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30 June 2011:

(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for 32% of the

Group’s total turnover.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted
for 29% and 66%, respectively, of the Group’s total purchases (not

including purchases of items which are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates (within the meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”)) or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the Company’s

share capital had any interests in the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders
as at 30 June 2011 comprised share premium, share options reserve and
retained profits in aggregate amounting to approximately HK$24,484,000
(2010: HK$24,389,000) provided that, after distribution, the Company
will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors:
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Mr. Ho Ka Ho

Non-Executive Director:
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Hon To, David

Prof. Siu Wan Chi

Prof. Ching Pak Chung

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Ho Ka Ho and Dr. Chan Cheung Fat will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Non-Executive Director is the period up to
his retirement or rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Association.

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of one year commencing 1 April 2001,
which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
by giving six months’ prior written notice.

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat has entered into a two-year consultancy agreement
with the Company commencing 1 April 2001 under which he has agreed
to act as a research and development consultant to the Group on a part-
time basis. The service period of such agreement has been extended and
will continue unless and until terminated by either party by giving three

months’ prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS

At 30 June 2011, the interests of the Directors, Chief Executives and
their associates in the shares and share options of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required pursuant

to Section 352 of the SFO, or which are required pursuant to Rule 5.46

of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each of the Company

Name of Directors

wAEH

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
WA B2

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat
PR B 1+

(b) Share options

Name of Directors

WA REH

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
PR AR S 4%

Dr. Ma Chi Kit
ARG

Mr. Ho Ka Ho
R 5eE

22 TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR# A 2 ]

Capacity

g1

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
HisZEE A A (At 1)

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
M sZEE A TSR A (At 1)

Capacity
&6

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

HaEa N (M7t 2)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

HaEAa N (7 2)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

HaEAa N (7 2)
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Number of
issued
ordinary
shares held
fifi C
W H

5,200,000

5,200,000

(b) B HE
Number of

share

options held
T4 BB B H
135,000

126,000

124,000

Percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company
¥ NSy £ )
JBeACH By be

57.5%

57.5%

Number of
underlying
shares

1B Jbe £y ¥ H

135,000

126,000

124,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note 23

to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

o0 e B e i DB i 2 i 2 ()

A TR AR 2 ) 8 PR R ) 2 R AR O A S TS R

FE23 4 o

TR AR T AR 2 5

Outstanding Outstanding
at beginning Exercised Lapsed at end of
of the year during during the year
Option type AR the year the year TSR 7%
i B i 35U G ARAT JAE BE AT TAE BE W 2R3 i ARAT
Category 1: Directors
B 1 : WG
Prof. Chan Chok Ki Pre-IPO Scheme 90,000 — (90,000) —
[CR(ER =2 E5% 19 HB i P - 8
2003 Option Scheme 135,000 — — 135,000
TRE A BRI #
Dr. Ma Chi Kit Pre-IPO Scheme 72,000 — (72,000) —
G 8 8 B - 1
2003 Option Scheme 126,000 — — 126,000
TR AR IR IR R B
Mr. Ho Ka Ho Pre-IPO Scheme 68,200 — (68,200) —
(IEE S/ 18 T A - )
2003 Option Scheme 124,000 — — 124,000
TRE AR IR #
Total Directors % &t 615,200 — (230,200) 385,000
Category 2: Employees
B2: A
Employees Pre-IPO Scheme 58,600 — (58,600) —
g 8 18 T A - )
2003 Option Scheme 64,000 (24,000) — 40,000
TERE AR IR #
Total employees & B &7t 122,600 (24,000) (58,600) 40,000
Total (all categories) A&l (FrA %Al 737,800 (24,000) (288,800) 425,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1) These shares, representing approximately 57.5% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 30 June 2011, are held by Etin City Limited, which
is owned by Etin Tech Limited and CityU Enterprises Limited in the
proportion of 70% and 30%, respectively. Etin Tech Limited is owned by
Prof. Chan Chok Ki, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Mr. Ho
Ka Ho in the proportion of approximately 44.3%, 34.3%, 14.3% and 7.1%,
respectively. As Prof. Chan Chok Ki and Dr. Chan Cheung Fat are entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power in
general meetings of Etin Tech Limited, they are deemed to be interested in
the entire shares in the Company held by Etin City Limited.

(2)  The share options have been granted to the Directors pursuant to the share
option schemes adopted by the Company, details of which are set out in
Note 23 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a subsidiary
held by a Director in trust for the Group, at 30 June 2011, none of the
Directors, the Chief Executives of the Company nor their associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as described in Note 23 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under
the age of eighteen, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the

Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the related party transactions disclosed in Note 28 to the
financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Interests in Shares and Share Options”, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or short position
in the issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2011.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in

Note 23 to the financial statements.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

The Directors believe that none of the Directors nor the management
shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had an interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or any other conflicts of interests which any such

person has or may have with the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has four members comprising the three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Prof. Siu Wan
Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive Director, namely
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports and half-yearly
report and to provide advice and comment thereon to the Board. The
audit committee will also be responsible for reviewing and supervising

the financial reporting and internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee has reviewed the draft of this report and has
provided advice and comments thereon. The audit committee held four

meetings during the year ended 30 June 2011.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has three members comprising two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Prof. Siu Wan Chi and
Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr.
Chan Cheung Fat.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to formulate
and make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedures for

developing policy on such remuneration.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the financial year
under review. The committee has considered and reviewed the existing
terms of service contracts of the Directors and considers that the existing

terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable.

AUDITORS
The accompanying financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng who will retire at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 16 September 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Y88 1A St

B & w EH A

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

11 Pedder Street, Central

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TeleEye
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 83, which comprise
the consolidated and Company’s statements of financial position as at
30 June 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

The Landmark

Hong Kong
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
June 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 16 September 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 545 2 42 %%

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Research and development expenditure

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations
Increase in fair value gain on available-for-

sale investments
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share

— Basic

— Diluted

2011 2010
TR TR
NOTES HKS$’000 HK$°000
Mtk T Fi# T
A 7 45,693 50,616
B LA (22,117) (24,615)
EH 23,576 26,001
HAh e A 8 211 303
BH A Iy B A (9,426) (9,015)
1T (7,463) (10,548)
F 5% S 5% e = (5,579) (4,667)
o i s 13 9 1,319 2,074
B s 32 11 (140) (542)
A A1 1,179 1,532
HoAth 2 i 25
R B AN 2R 2 IR H
T 2 A= 2 B 25 %A 209 618
AL BN (E 3 0
1,393 22
AAE i HAth 4 A7 A 1,602 640
A B 2 T A £ A8 % 2,781 2,172
I BN I A A A R
ARNFHEA N 1,206 1,525
IF FE A 4 27) 7
1,179 1,532
iR 3 A AR AR 2 T
W 25 HBAH
ANEEA N 2,817 2,046
FEE R 75 36) 126
2,781 2,172
3 B 75 12
— AR 13.36 cents il 16.91 cents 1lli
— 13.21 cents il 16.84 cents ili
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &8 WME IR #

At 30 June 2011 JA ~F——4 A =1H

2011 2010
b S R4
NOTES HK$’000 HKS$°000
i TFH#T T
Non-current assets I E) &
Property, plant and equipment W~ E KA 13 1,339 1,257
Capitalised development costs BREMA G AL 14 2,207 1,641
Available-for-sale investments AL R 16 6,168 2,833
9,714 5,731
Current assets L)
Inventories e 17 14,122 10,940
Trade and other receivables JFRR WA e 2 e L At JEE WAk 18 5,312 7,427
Bills receivables R i S 18 373 —
Bank balances and cash SRATHS B LB 4 19 15,719 19,586
35,526 37,953
Current liabilities i) A E
Trade and other payables JREARK AR R e Al B A+ 3K 20 3,321 4,844
Tax payables JREAS Bl TE 147 45
3,468 4,889
Net current assets E A E T E 32,058 33,064
Total assets less current liabilities M R B B AR 41,772 38,795
Non-current liability B & AR
Deferred tax liabilities R SERLIH A fif 24 499 399
Net assets B 41,273 38,396
Capital and reserves B KAt
Share capital A& A 22 1,808 1,803
Reserves frt 5 39,642 36,734
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A/ ml#EA AMEAG 2 #E 4% 41,450 38,537
Non-controlling interests FE = A £ 177) (141)
Total equity HEHE 4 41,273 38,396
The consolidated financial statements on pages 29 to 83 were approved F20 B AL A MBMERE RGN T ——4F
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 September 2011 JUA 75 B e R AZRETIED » Sl th 5l & F AR E
and are signed on its behalf by: FEEE
PROF. CHAN CHOK KI Bitfi B8 3% MR. HO KA HO fi % %€ %6k
DIRECTOR #%# DIRECTOR #%#
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S5 IR DL

At 30 June 2011 JA ~F——4 A =1H

Non-current asset

Investment in a subsidiary

Current assets
Other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Bank balances

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables

Tax payable

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

B & E
T WY 2 7] 2 B E

H A B Wk
JRE WA 4 i 2 ) IR
AT ER

P B

FHR A BLIE( 3

A B T

UL B R (E
B
B RS
A
it

R o

PROF. CHAN CHOK KI Bl i 56 45

DIRECTOR ##

2011 2010

S —F

NOTES HKS$°000 HKS$'000
i THT T
15 10 10
64 64

21 24,832 24,167
19 2,559 3,184
27,455 27,415

998 1,121

175 112

1,173 1,233

26,282 26,182

26,292 26,192

22 1,808 1,803
25 24,484 24,389
26,292 26,192

MR. HO KA HO T3 %4

DIRECTOR #3H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

s 3 W 2 ) %

32

For the year ended 30 June 2011 #% ~F——4 /N H =+ H L4

At 1 July 2009

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

for the year

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Recognition of equity-seitled

share-based payments

At30 June 2010

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

for the year

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Issue of ordinary shares upon

exercise of share options

At 30 June 2011

Note:

R-FRAELA-R

REERANEER
BN EERERG
BRI

KB BEAAH

FrlmR g R

i e VA

Attributable to owners of the Company

kA g M
(Accumulated
Investment Share losses)/ Non-
Share Share  Translation revaluation options Special refained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
(i)
Tk Tt ERfh  SEGRE  WRERG WHRE /RN gt RBREE it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T T#r T#1 71 Tk T#1 7T T#r T#1 T#r
(Note)
i)

1,803 21,646 (610) (662) - 14990 (L778) 35,389 (267) 35,122
- - - - - - 1,525 1,525 1 1,532
- - 499 N - - - Vi 119 040
- - 499 1 - - 1,525 2,046 126 1M
- - - - 1,102 - - 1,102 - 1,102

1,803 21,646 (111) (640) 1,102 14990 (253) 383537 (141) 38.3%
- - - - - - 1,206 1,209 27 1179
- - 218 1,393 - - - 1611 9) 1,602
- - 218 1,393 - - 1,206 2817 (36) 1781

5 17 - - (80) - - %6 - %

1,808 1817 107 8 1,022 1499 953 41,450 (1) 41,73

Wik
A [ 22 R T T B AR IR R R — 4RI ) AT R

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the aggregate

of the nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a

group reorganisation in April 2001 and the nominal value of the share capital

issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition.

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

R ST e

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of capitalised development costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Allowance for/(Reversal of allowance for)

obsolete stocks

Write down of inventories
Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Dividend income from listed equity securities
Interest income from bank deposits
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Share-based payments

Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital
Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables

Increase in bills receivables

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

Interest received
Tax refunded/(paid)

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend income received

Increase in capitalised development costs

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

BEEH

R i A1)

HUT S F A

R IRA G AL 2 #

I3 ~ W5 Kottt 2 IS

RETFE
(3t el

A7 B

RIS A3 ]

Lﬁ% Ve 25 2 IS A
(R eills)

ﬂﬁ%¥‘ﬁ

AR AR 2o ZEBREAST 35

PE I PA €

R T 2 BB S E

Pl

JRRE A B R e L At B W ks b
(H&m)

JRE S 4 B

JARE A R 2 A JRE A 33K (i)
e

FE TR 588 3685 2 Bl

C AR
2R (B ) BiIH

M PRI A 486 S 5 2 B 4 ¥ 1

B R

E B Rl A

B IMA B A3
Y s LBtz
iRGE/e

BEA R (it S B
HEAWIZE ~ Wi Bt

M PR A B o SR 5 2 B 4 ¥
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2011 2010
ZB——4p TR
HK$’000 HKS$°000
F#x T# T
1,319 2,074
737 687

619 634
106 (472)

446 787
(85) (70)
(194) (118)
€)) (2)
(196) (66)

— 1,102

2,751 4,556
(3,734) (4,852)
2,200 (1,280)
373) —
(1,523) 838
(679) (738)

1 2
62 (612)

(616) (1,348)

194 118
(1,303) (912)
210 —
(1,942) (1,506)
(707) (857)
(3,548) (3,157)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #6834 E

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4F X H =1 H L4

2011 2010
TR TR
HKS$’000 HK$'000
T Fitor
FINANCING ACTIVITIES € 3
Proceeds from issue of shares BEAT Ay 2 T A5 2RI 96 —
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING W HBEFHEZB L TH
ACTIVITIES 96 =
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH B4 BB &5 W S
EQUIVALENTS (4,068) (4,505)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RAER 2 B4 BB 4260
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 19,586 23,459
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE i 20 5 W 2 3
RATE CHANGES 201 632
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TRAE# 2 BL4: R B4 208 »
AT END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash RPSRAT 45 ik Mo Bl 4 15,719 19,586
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its ultimate holding company is Etin Tech Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of the

annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the

Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 15.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
New and revised Standards and Interpretations applied in

current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010

Group Cash-settled Share-based

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
Payment Transactions
HKAS 32 (Revised) Classification of Right Issues
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments
HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause

The application of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations in the current year has had no material effect on the
amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements and/or

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

— Mg

AN F A B 2 B s R B 2 A BRA R - L
e 103 7 7 s W 6 32 5 T A BR 2 ) (T W 32 T 1)
Al ZEMR b O £ A A B Etin Tech
Limited - — 5 i 3% JB JiE 4o # 55 ([ 96 8 o8 % B
B 1) GRS 2 A A o AR A kR R K
B S B 2 b hEAE AR BB R ] — 6 A

s

Bg ©

SR a BB AR I LA T A > WA A ] 2
DI WA o

A F BRI R A 2 ¥
TR 15 -

M IS 38 B 1 T A U o o )
([ 7 8 S 5 A o% S )
A A JE MR R 22500 0 e B s T e R R R

JAAEE » ARG TR LT A g A e
(I 7 v e wt B2 8 1) AR e 2 7 38 I KEAERT HE JI
K o

BN T IEREEEE

(EFTA) HE I 2 U
T B G MER  R - AEAE
CCHES) HEHI| 2 ot
F s B R UER] A 2 BT S LA £
5298 (EFTA) R L 5
v g wh e Al it 5345
5532 9% (5845%T)

s (B IAFSIE  DARESS T EAKea A A
R EZAE)

— WA 19 9%
T — M HEZ 25 — HK

555 9% N B R A R
2 M ERZ 0B

R A A JBE I PR 0T 1 I G A T Y ) i R S 5
SAMBMER ML GBI B E A W
LEGE PAI T N TN 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards and Interpretations issued but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income*

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets?

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)  Employee benefits®

HKAS 24 (Revised 2009)  Related party disclosures!'
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)  Separate financial statements®
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)  Investments in associates and joint

ventures®

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of financial

assets?
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements®
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements®
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other
entities®
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement®
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding
(Amendments) requirement!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as revised
in November 2010) adds requirements for financial liabilities and
for derecognition. Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of

subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates to
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the presentation of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 309, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss

was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The Directors
of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial year ending
30 June 2014 and that the application of new standard may have a
significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s

financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

HEE I B 0 B € 15 T A U B A e
(T 7 9 S 5 33 o4 1R S0 1) (480)

T A O RIS 0 SR R TR | O —F %
U+ — AWM SIS REE T BIRFEZ
TR o 7 S5 it YE R 56 0 SR Bl T A
(i —F—F4F+— HEERT) A&/ A |
B BT RS 2 R AE o AR A o T S i o5 v U 26
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the

effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with

those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately

from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. Prior to 1 July 2010, losses applicable to the non-
controlling interests in excess of the non-controlling interests in
the subsidiary’s equity were allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the non-controlling interests had a
binding obligation and were able to make an additional investment

to cover the losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related

taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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VR 5 % 0 B ik

40

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense

in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the translation

reserve).

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or

loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so

that it will be available for use or sales;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the four
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The Group
designated certain listed equity securities as available-for-sale

financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on

financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows

of the financial assets have been affected.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost

is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest

and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of one month, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated

future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in

subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event

occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified

into other financial liabilities.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liability classified as at FVTPL, of which the

interest expense is included in net gains or losses.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those

cash flows (where the effect is material).

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 1 July 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised as
an expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted
vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment

to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred

to retained profits.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)
Share options granted to employees before 1 July 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the value of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital
at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded as
share premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their

exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The critical accounting judgement and key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at the
end of the reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items especially technology solution system
identified that are of minimal resale value due to technological
changes. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventory based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting

period and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment of capitalised development costs
Determining whether capitalised development costs is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount determined by
the value in use of the capitalised development costs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the capitalised development costs and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The
Group carries out an impairment review assessment on a product-
by-product basis in respect of the capitalised development costs at
the end of the reporting period and no impairment is made for the
years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional

allowances may be required.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2011

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments
Trade and other receivables
Bills receivables

Bank balances and cash

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

2010

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments
Trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

CEES-Si'e -y

JFE W B A A B LAk
JE W
RATHEBR M &

JRE A SR R B HL A IR ASF

Al B
JFE W R % A B LAk
BATH G LB &
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5. &WMIR
(a) EWTHAHE
—R -4
B
Loans and  Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
FeRMREBOR A ik st
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#x T#x T#x
— 6,168 6,168
4,306 — 4,306
373 — 373
15,719 — 15,719
20,398 6,168 26,566
EBA LT
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
VLB SR A B 2
L
HKS$’000
T#x
3,080
It S
EHEE
Loans and  Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
BRI ATt S o
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
T T T#TT THET
— 2,833 2,833
5,446 — 5,446
19,586 — 19,586
25,032 2,833 27,865
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4F X H =1 H L4

S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

(b)

5. 4&WTH)

Categories of financial instruments (continued) (a) 4T H%8(5)
Financial liabilities A T
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
DABESH A S E 2
EoA =K
HK3°000
TFi#EIT
Trade and other payables JREAST R o LAt JRE A 3k 4,844
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) S bl B 4% PIL H B R BUR
The Group’s major financial instruments include available- AL E 2 F A T E A G ] I
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, bills B M R R S Al RE iR - ME R
receivables, bank balances and trade and other payables. P8 - BRAT A B - M AT HR K % H b FE A
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in He HFHZESE e THZ#IENS AR
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial B 5 R 9 5% o A B 5% S A T 2 JEl B
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate AL HE T 55 R B (5 e R B ~ ) 2% B R L
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The fib B A% SR B ) ~ {5 B R B M T B A 4 R
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. B o A7 BRI D 5% 45 TR B 2 B R 81 R T
The management manages and monitors these exposures to o A JE P R N A wn A R B o DA
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and PRAE 5 IR A O B AT A 2 15 e
effective manner.
Market risk VR
Currency risk B
Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales AR E T KB N J DA B
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency i A 42 [ T S A R JEL R o A 4E (B B 5 AR
risk. Approximately 66% (2010: 74%) of the Group’s sales #166% (& —FAF © 74%) J& DL B 8l
are denominated in currencies other than the functional B AR E T R R U 2
currency of the group entity making the sales, whilst almost GIAE > T 42 H133% (& —ZF4F 1 22%)
33% (2010: 22%) of costs are denominated in the group ZIAR AL EEEEL H 2 REE N
entity’s functional currencies. g -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency R B AR LA S AL 2 B
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the Wb I B B IR T
reporting date are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
£ <03
2011 2010 2011 2010
[ Y e S - SR TR
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
FH#EL T T T#oC FHIT
GBP PR 303 342 3,011 4,258
RMB NS 441 445 509 449
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the Directors continuously monitor
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in
GBP.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2010: 5%) increase and decrease in the Hong Kong dollars
against the relevant foreign currency. 5% (2010: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchanges rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2010: 5%) change in foreign currency rate.
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and
equity where the Hong Kong dollars weaken 5% (2010:
5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% (2010: 5%)
strengthening of the Hong Kong dollars against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the

profit and equity, and the balances below would be negative.

I U 1R
REAR

Profit or loss

Equity
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PE R AE B 5% (ZF — T4 1 5%) 3l
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Impact of GBP

KB
2011 2010
B TR TR
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#rx T T
83 106
177 142
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The Directors consider
the Group’s exposure of bank balances to interest rate risk is
not significant as fluctuation of savings interest rates on bank
balance is minimal. The Group currently does not have a
policy on hedges of interest rate risk. However, the Directors
monitor interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles. In addition, the
Directors monitor the price risk on an ongoing basis and will

consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 5% (2010: 5%) higher/lower,
investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$308,000 (2010: HK$142,000) as a result

of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

5.

Sk TR (4])

(b)
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

The Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical

areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for financial liabilities
are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes

both interest and principal cash flows.

Annual Report 2011 43

5.

4xih T H (4)
(b) V5 Rl e 4 B R e R (%51
1 4 B ()

Ttk WK AR T Ja B > AR SR B 2 R B
CHREM AREEFERE  F8
A B FoAh B2 R P > DA (R BR IUER
A7 B i 8138 1 IH o ek > A SR R
e R A w8 5 B 5 AR IE 2w i el
SR DURREOR AN AT i 1] < R R R A
ZWAE G 1R o BRULT o AR R A
By ALEZAE AR C KB

) W 2 (5 PR B A R - AT B 52 55
S 7 5 5 P 40T £ 58
e ed Gl

7% 2 18] Sl 48 A e Lt B R T 46 P 2 A5
JEFR o BECR AR ELIE B R Z 2K
AR A TEE &

) B 2

e B B Ja B U T > AR 4R B R AR
BRI — kP 2 Bl R Bl &5 HY)
1M 5% 7K T 775 4 B0 g A5 0 2 DA B A AR 4
ST BN IS B R ) R o

TRASIALEEEMEAEZHEGE A
B AAF I EEMA B RUB B &
VB AR T AR - T % < B AR IR A AR
T R R 2 e R R IR o e
BB Z B H Y 5 th e 12 K H Y E
TREFEMERAEBERE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

5. &R
(b) V5 Rl e 4 B R e R (%51

Liquidity risk (continued) I ) B 2 M ()
Liquidity table Vil /b=
Carrying
Total amount at
Less than undiscounted the end of the
1 year cash flows reporting period
AP BLBL4& R R
Pk 1 4R A & J i L A
2011 R4 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T T T
Non-derivative FERT A S b £
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables A W ok B A JE £ 5k 3,080 3,080 3,080
2010 TR R
Non-derivative FEAT A S A
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables R AST R 2k e LAt IR A 3k 4,844 4,844 4,844
Fair value 2
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are BEE KA A EE N
determined as follows: AEE

— the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;

and

—  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable market

transactions as inputs.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair

values.

A

A AR R I AV A T LA T R
Rzl FEEZ SREEZ
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk management

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on

the degree to which the fair value is observable:

— Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived

from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

5.

4xih T H (4)

(b) V5 Rl e 4 B R e R (%51
VL b e
&y

T RE ML AR LA
B TH A - Mg H Bl

L st

BB UK i & 2P AT 2

VPR Z
AT

—  BMAPEFETY B ARIE G E

7 T BT 5 5 R A A (o )
e

5B THEFH R TIBRSE — SR A
RSN HEESAE B
(BPAE S ) SR 3% (B RS AT AR ) Bl
A B o

B =N FE R R TR A AR
BT G E R (S LA AR
B 2 8 A A R A (E
TrER

30 June 2011

R -4ENAZTH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
W% B W= Bst
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
F#r T#C T#C T#C
Available-for-sale Al i
investments
Listed equity securities b TR g R 6,168 — — 6,168
30 June 2010
ZER—RIENH=TH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
% 5% =5 o
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$000
FiH T FiE T FitE T FiH T
Available-for-sale At ERE
investments
Listed equity securities bR R TR 2,833 — — 2,833
There was no transfer between the three levels in the current AR FE K & —4F R > AR 45 SR T I 48
year and prior year. L o
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % ~F——4 N H =+ HIEF &

6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
quarterly basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new

share issues as well as the issue of debt.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, less returns and allowances to outside customers during the

year.

The Group’s operating and reportable segment have been identified
on the basis of internal management reports prepared in accordance
with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker of the Group, in order to allocate

resources to segments and to assess their performances.

The Executive Directors regularly review revenue and overall
operating result derived from research and development and sales
and marketing of video monitoring systems and consider them as

one single operating segment.

40 b g 4 B
AT S o R LU T (ORI 25
P 1 e T A0 5% 5 I 0L B8 i 5 0
B IR R R ()9 o A4
S B 35 (R o

AEM 2 BEARBALE - Ble KB ESEY
DA R Ay m A N A M i (B4 © 3847 oA
Befiti ) -

A A H AR AN o M IR
—ERar > HEHE A AR B A A 2 A B
JEBR o ARAHE R o A BIE R S
FHBEE ~ B AT R A8 3847 > P R
RGN -

WA e 2y OB
WASRERNESIREFCE L BHZ I E
LK T BB A e B < RO o

AR B 2 A8 T AT B o G 4 oA R L
A F o AR RO TR A R YRR
FRFEORG R - AL FAPITESR (R EH 2
B AR ) 2 R > DL o 0 Bl B
TR AP AR B -

AT HE F 2 M B OT 8 DL MR B R A 8
B i 3 1R B T AR 2 i A R A A
O 2 A5 ] B
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4F X H =1 H L4

7.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS SRR (B
(CONTINUED)
Geographical information b ik %5 )
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the People’s AR [ 2 ZETS LA AU~ EE AN RN (T
Republic of China (“PRC”) and Europe. B ) BB e
The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical ALE H A% e b @ oy 2 AN F o RL K
location of customers and information about its non-current assets i 5 o BT AE b #) 23 2 I i B R AR A
by geographical location of the assets are detailed below: T

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
K HBIE P ZBA FE i ) ¥ e
2011 2010 2011 2010
e e - = e e Y
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
FH#EL T FH#xT T
Asia EEM] 22,584 29,387 3,385 2,764
Europe 5 eul! 11,336 10,055 161 134
Africa T 9,656 9,947 — —
Others HAth 2,117 1,227 — —
45,693 50,616 3,546 2,898
Note: Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments. BitaE - FE B E I N LS T A A -
Information about major customers AWEEEPZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing i AP R A 8 A 4 B S B B 5 70 10% 2 &P IR
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: AHR
2011 2010
e SR
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x T T
Customer A EFE A 8,103 7,552
Customer B %FB N/A RE ! 7,203
! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 1 ETRE MAC A ST S 5 74 [ o 5 2380 1 0% o

sales of the Group.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4F X H =1 H L4

8.

OTHER INCOME

Other income is analysed as follows:

Dividend income from listed
equity securities

Interest income from bank deposits

Others

8. HAbWA
2011 2010
e i TR RAE
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T Fior
HAbyg A Z 3 Hrtn ks -

iR R R 2 BB IR A
194 118
SRATAE R B A 1 2
HoAty 16 183
211 303
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4F X H =1 H L4

9.  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBLNI A
2011 2010
R4 e S a2
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
F#xi T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at  FRBELETAIEE f0 7 (FEA)
after charging/(crediting):
Staff salaries and other benefits B L3 4 B = At AR A
(including directors’ remuneration) (EfEHE LM E) 16,569 14,546
Share-based payments DA B A 75 HE R A5 3 — 1,102
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  #E4A4E A 51 #1142k 566 517
Total staff costs 2B T AS 17,135 16,165
Less: Amount capitalised as development & - & ZA{L Il 51 V% & A 2
costs KIH (1,303) (912)
15,832 15,253
Allowance for/(Reversal of allowance for) &7 & #E MG (B )
obsolete stocks (included in (I A& LA
cost of sales) 106 (472)
Amortisation of capitalised development  #§ B A G AL 2 #EEY
costs (included in research and (EHAWFF S35 e 2 )
development expenditure) 737 687
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BRI 4 311 348
Depreciation of property, W ~ BE K 2 e
plant and equipment 619 634
Gain on disposal of property, B - E K 2 i
plant and equipment (196) (66)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss P 5, (e 4 ) /T 18, 1% (664) 1,452
Reversal of allowance for bad and SRS R A 3 ]
doubtful debts (85) (70)
Write down of inventories A7 B O (251 A 81565 LA )
(included in cost of sales) 446 787
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

10.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. W3 KR 4
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2010: seven) EATEEA B (R —FAE - B ) HEAA A
Directors were as follows: Z&ur :
2011 "R
Prof. Chan Dr. Ma Mr. Ho Dr. Chan Prof. Siu  Prof. Ching  Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo  Cheung Fat Wan Chi  Pak Chung To David Total
MAEEAR  REBL WEEEAE  WRENL  FRhEE RfhEeR mEEEE pLES
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HK$’000
T T F#L F#L FH#L FH#L FH#L FH#L
Fees G — — — — 60 60 60 180
Other emoluments Hibm 4
Salaries and other benefits 74 MR 2913 1,248 1,075 187 — — — 5,423
Contributions to retirement  H/RAEAFH#1
benefit scheme i3 12 12 12 — — — — 36
Total emoluments 4 2,925 1,260 1,087 187 60 60 60 5,639
2010 it S 22
Prof. Chan Dr. Ma Mr. Ho Dr. Chan Prof. Siu  Prof. Ching ~ Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo  Cheung Fat Wan Chi  Pak Chung To David Total
BEERR  HEEEL  WMEZEE  WEEEL SaRER BOvER SEEEE A5t
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T T T T T T T T
Fees fs — — — — 60 60 60 180
Other emoluments Hhm 4
Salaries and other benefits %4 K F At &A1 2,193 1,021 957 187 = — — 4358
Contributions to retirement EUNRIES |
benefit scheme ik 12 12 12 — — — — 36
Share-based payments DA A R
AT 301 301 301 = = = = 903
Total emoluments 4 2,506 1,334 1,270 187 60 60 60 5477
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

10.

11.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

The five highest paid individuals included three (2010: three)
Directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2010: two)
individuals, which fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000
for each of the two years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010, were as

follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme

Share-based payments

During each of the two years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including Directors, as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In addition,

no Director waived any emoluments during the years ended 30 June

2011 and 2010.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Current year

Overprovision in prior years

Deferred tax (note 24)

Current year

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

4z S HA AR A
AR AR At kK

DA A7 25 2 B 2 Ao K

A A A
A
A B AR

RIEBLIE (M7t 24)
AR
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10, HEE R O L4 ()

11.

TE AL G s 2 N> EREARN T Z =1
(CZF—FF =) #EF > BfELCHARH
P 4 RE 5 o HIBRAT 7 (o —F4E - Wi fiz) A
LR E E AR FEFIEANH = 1H
AE T AR B A% 4 2 B < A o 2 21,000,000 #5
JG > REIEAE -

2011 2010

R —E R
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x T#T
783 786

24 24

— 40

807 850

WRE-F——FELF-FFEA=1THIE
T IR 45 B2 A AR A > 7 48 1 57 40 1) 7 P 2 0 i
Z N L (BLIEE S ) SR T H A 5 R 5 it
SN AAR B ) 2 8 A A A SR B 2 IR
WS A B A A A o LA > M EF
— R R -RENA =T HIREE > I
AT -

P f3 B3
2011 2010
SR TR
HK$’000 HKS$000
T#L Fi#oT
232 457
(192) —
40 457
100 85
140 542
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT

Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate

of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rate

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at the domestic income tax rate
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Overprovision in prior years

Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Others

Tax charge for the year

P4 B 3¢ s (%)
A A B0 LA WA 4F B2 2 A T I R ) # Bt

% 16.5%71HE -

5 25% o

Z B RABLAREE -

AR b B A S PT RBLk ([P R L ) K
SEPTR Bk 2 E R

H 2 Ja 2 R 2 B R
P JE At ) i W [ 2 A 2 3 T T 4 A T D

AR BE 2 BLIE ST T B AR R T g R T

SR QR
2011 2010
TR AR SR —FAE
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T Fitk oo
o o i ) 1,319 2,074
FEA TR BB 2R 16.5%
(T E—F4E  16.5%) 5HE 2 BLIE 218 342
N RN BA S 2 Bl 5 2
109 465
BB A 2 B 5 2
(148) (225)
i A R B TR e 48 2 B i 177 —
B 408 1 v R R 2 B TE s 4R
— (68)
AR AE R A (192) —
A A ] 2 [ R A A B N R B R
AN 2 BT g 2 (35) (57)
HAth 11 85
AR BT 140 542

Annual Report 2011 43

TeleEye Holdings Limited B IR 7 B4 B ]

65



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

66

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following

data:

Earnings
Earnings for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share
(Profit for the year attributable to

owners of the Company)

Numbers of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic

earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares:

— Share options

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted

earnings per share

12. B
AN T AT N A A LA T 4890 g 25 T AR 5
DI B R

W i
FH VAR S BB A B v Wi 2 2 i 4
(A2 R ARG AR 45 B2 1)

et
R R A3 2 R
A

TR R B 2 B

— M

PR S MM A 2 2 R
T
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2011 2010

S S
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
T#C T n
1,206 1,525

°000 000

T T
9,027 9,015

100 39

9,127 9,054




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  W# &

For the year ended 30 June 2011 #% —F——H /N H =+ H ILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - W Bk fhi

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvements fixtures equipment vehicle Total
HEMELEE BREEE  BATRME RH i
HKS$000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$000
T T T T Fito T T
THE GROUP AAEH
COST 5 %S
At 1 July 2009 WZEENFELA—H 411 677 3,453 706 5,247
Exchange adjustments [FE 52, 74 5 1 (11) (32) — (42)
Additions HRE — 10 610 317 937
Disposal e — (342) (1,929) (243) (2,514)
At 30 June 2010 IZFE—RERNH=1H 412 334 2,102 780 3,628
Exchange adjustments [FE 5, 74 8 4 8 37 — 49
Additions HRE 31 14 194 468 707
Disposal e — (103) (199) (464) (766)
At 30 June 2011 RoR—-—4ENAZTH 447 253 2,134 784 3,618
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 July 2009 REEENFELA—H 263 565 2,897 539 4,264
Exchange adjustments EE 5. ol R 1 ) (20) — (28)
Provided for the year ARAEFEFHE 108 68 276 182 634
Eliminated on disposals HEE R B — (340) (1,916) (243) (2,499)
At 30 June 2010 W E-ERENH =1 H 372 284 1,237 478 2,371
Exchange adjustments [ b, i 4 8 29 — 41
Provided for the year AAEEEHE 48 24 393 154 619
Eliminated on disposals o B IR — (101) (187) (464) (752)
At 30 June 2011 H=F——4EANH=1H 424 215 1,472 168 2,279
CARRYING AMOUNTS I Vi
At 30 June 2011 N=F——4EANH=1H 23 38 662 616 1,339
At 30 June 2010 RZFE—RERNH=1H 40 50 865 302 1,257
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and fixtures

Office equipment
Motor vehicle

33!/3% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

20%
20% — 33'3%
33'5%

14. CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

THE GROUP
COST

At 1 July 2009
Additions

At 30 June 2010
Additions

At 30 June 2011
AMORTISATION
At 1 July 2009

Provided for the year

At 30 June 2010
Provided for the year

At 30 June 2011

CARRYING AMOUNTS

At 30 June 2011

At 30 June 2010

Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using the

straight-line method over three years from the date it is available

for use.

The Directors reviewed the carrying value of the capitalised
development costs at the end of the reporting period with reference
to the discounted future cash flows from the products developed.

They determined that no impairment loss should be made at 30

June 2011 and 2010.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]
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13. W% - BB Kot fi (B1)

L OES
rTs:
WA SRR
g

14. BRWAE AL

saot
RoFFAELA A
AL R
BoF—FEAA=TH
AL R

REF——4AH=1TH

e i
REF—-—HAA=1H

R_FE—FEANA=Z1H

LAty E R E T A E AGE T
R

331/3% s A & 1A
(DAHR S 3 B i)

20%

20% — 331/3%

331/3%

Total
Bk
HKS$000
Fi#o

10,374
912

11,286
1,303

12,589

8,958
687

9,645
737

10,382

2,207

1,641

O a8 2 B 2 B AAS > fE HaT 66 F
AL F = AR ) DA B ARk 8 -

FERC2HOHBEMNZMBIRRBIERE
T AR At B AR 5 R AR 2 MR T ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

15.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

Unlisted investment, at cost

LB A

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011 were as

follows:

Name of subsidiary

i i 2 ) 44 A

Signal Communications Holdings

Limited

SiCOM China Limited

SiCOM Europe Limited

SiCOM Japan Limited

Signal Communications Limited

T RIRBHA RA A

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operation

A AR
338k

BVI
e ) aeids

BVI
e ) el

BVI
e b T

BVI
e ) el

Hong Kong
it

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
T RMR
YA
wE I EE A

HK$15,000,000
15,000,000 #57¢

US$1
1370

US$1
1%t

Us$1
13878

HK$1,000
1,000 #7C

15, JRAHHE A F Z B

The Company

Ao

2011 2010

S e
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T FeT

10 10

RoF——ENASTH - ARTARBATZ

k13
T

LU

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

HAR 2+

P 2 BT B
w6 A 2 i 4 e Bl
Directly Indirectly
Hi% 1A 4%
% %
100 —
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
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Principal activities

ERRH

Investment holding

M

Investment holding

B

Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

B

Research and development and
sales and marketing of video
monitoring systems

HEBERRR O K K
SHE K i 35 e
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

70

Name of subsidiary

and operation

registered capital

held by the Company

15. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 15. BB A Rl 2 8L ¥ (4)
Proportion of
Place of  Issued and fully nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up ordinary issued capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital

Principal activities

CHITRHR HIA R
L WA, HHZ OB
B IS 2 ) 44 A B 55 o R A WA Z mAE W hR
Directly Indirectly
Hi% I 4%
% %
TeleEye Europe Limited The United GBP100 — 95 Sales and marketing of video
Kingdom (“UK”) 100 8% monitoring systems
SR (32 ) REEER G HE R
T35 e
TeleEye Solutions Limited Hong Kong HKS$10 — 100 Inactive
THREXERKARAF &k 1078 LR #H
T B IR EAS AL () A FRA A PRC US$130,000 — 100  Production, sales and marketing
(Note) (/ff7%) el 130,000 %75 of video monitoring systems

Note: The company is registered in the form of a wholly foreign owned

enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16.

=2

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong s b e R

At the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale investments
are stated at fair value. Fair values of those investments have been

determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

17. INVENTORIES 17.
Raw materials J5 R
Finished goods BB

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND BILLS 18.
RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables JRE i R
Less: Allowance for bad and g R BERRAR A

doubtful debts

Other receivables oAt B Uk

o {3t £ B
The Group
A M
2011 2010
e S e S <2
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T#x THT
6,168 2,833

TR > B AT B E I DL (E S
IR - ZERE LN HETIZ B ERTIG i
BAE I E

i
The Group
S .|
2011 2010
S SE
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x TH#IT
8,931 4,959
5,191 5,981
14,122 10,940
BB ik B Bl MEE TSk e M MR 5
The Group
AAEH

2011 2010
“F SE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x THIT
3,900 5,152
90) (235)
3,810 4,917
1,502 2,510
5,312 7,427
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18.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group allows an average credit period of one month to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
(net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) at the end of the

reporting period prepared on the basis of payment due date of sales

invoice:

Current R HA

1 to 3 months overdue w1 =31 H
More than 3 months overdue #1448 3 A

All bills receivables of the Group at 30 June 2011 are aged within

one month at the end of the reporting period.

Before accepting new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customers’ credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.

Limits attributed to customers are reviewed annually.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$574,000 (2010:
HK$711,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The normal
age of these receivables is 66 days (2010: 62 days).

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

1 to 3 months overdue w1 =38 H
More than 3 months overdue san 40 A 3 M H

Annual Report 2011 43

18.

HEE VB MRk B L MEE Wk e MO WG 5% 0 (48

AEE—-BAEESEFRE—MEAZEH
HA o AR AR 2 8 B B SR 2 B AR H A 2
FEUE 13 2 MRS HR (11 B R S MR 45 B i
AT

The Group
S .|

2011 2010
e BB
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
THL T
3,236 4,206
537 703
37 8
3,810 4,917

ALEN =T ——FNA =+ HZ A IR
B2 IRE Y B IR — A A -

RILRH R PR > AR B E AL R S 2 06
HHEZE > URRAEEFZFEHEE - TEF
BB R o

A AR ] 2 i R K 4G R AL S AR R T (E A 5
574,000 %5 70 (—F —F4F 1 711,000 #50) Z &
TH > A IR B o A4 3 R EHE
TR ARG R o 7S 42 [0 800 0 5 5% 45 A4 R A A ATl 4K
Pl o ZERBUCKIEZ — RIS o6 H (%
—FF 62H) o

O 2 10 4R M BB ik 2 M i
The Group
= 3L |

2011 2010
Bt Y TR AR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x THETT
537 703
37 8
574 711
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18.

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

At beginning of the year AR

Reversal of allowance for bad and SR S I % A % ]
doubtful debts

Amounts written off as uncollectible TSR 2 2R U 0] S H

At end of the reporting period AR AR

Included in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance
of approximately HK$90,000 (2010: HK$235,000) which were past
due and not recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

Aging of impaired trade receivables

&

More than 3 months overdue 780 1) e 2t 3 4] )
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank
deposits held by the Group and the Company with an original
maturity of three months or less. The bank balances carry interest
at the prevailing market interest rates which range from 0.01% to
0.21% (2010: 0.01% to 0.11%) per annum. At 30 June 2011, the
Group had bank balances and cash that were not freely convertible
or were subject to exchange controls in the PRC amounting to
approximately HK$118,000 (2010: HK$172,000).

18.

19.
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MR VB MRk B L MEE VB sk % MG WG 5% 0 (48

IR S 55 1 5 )
The Group
AR M

2011 2010
e R
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T#x TTT
235 521
(85) (70)
(60) (216)
920 235

SR S5 B e 6 A I (2 R AR R A R A
90,000 % 7T (& — 4 1 235,000% 75) » )3
L S N AR o AR 8 7 A R A A R AR
ARl HEH T o

O D0 M VB M sk 2 O it
The Group
= 3L |
2011 2010
S S —E—FF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x THET
920 235

SRAT 45 B S B4 G4 AR 4 | e AR A AR 2
Bl B JE o 1 = AR A s A A B A 2 B AR AT
Tk o SRATHERILO0.01% E021% (ZF—=&
1 0.01% % 0.11%) 2 BLAT F Al R 51 E o ik
ZFE——AFERNAZTH > REFEARREA L
o T% 57 v B 1 R B 2 T R 2 SR AT A K M B4 A
118,000 #5706 (= F—ZF4F : 172,000 #IC) ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

JE o R 3K
At b 2 L H A RE A K

Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the end of
the reporting period prepared on the basis of payment due date of

supplier’s invoice:

Current R HA
1 to 3 months overdue w1 =318 H
More than 3 months overdue #1448 3 A

The normal credit period on purchases of goods is one month.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES
The Company
The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable

on demand.
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20, HEA MK B Uil R Aok 3k

The Group
A M

2011 2010
e S e S <2
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T#x THT
1,809 2,622
1,512 2,222
3,321 4,844

T S O A A M 7 O 2 B A K 3 2 2
HET w33 2 B A BRAR I AT I T

The Group
AR

2011 2010
S —E R
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x TH#T
1,554 2,397
170 131
85 94
1,809 2,622

PRIET b2 — IRAE AR — WA -

21.  WEWCBH )& 2 vi) 3K M
AN )

%S G BR A SRR AT - A RE B 2R i 2R T E

7= o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 % 0 B ik

For the year ended 30 June 2011 # % —F——4 /N H =+ H L4

22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. AR
Number of shares Share capital
e £y ¥ H JBe AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
R R T . —ER AR
’000 000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T T T#rx T
Ordinary shares of A BT BL 0.2 #E T
HK$0.2 each 2 5
Authorised: RE A
At beginning of year =) 40,000 800,000 8,000 8,000
Share consolidation et & F — (760,000) — —
At end of year R 40,000 40,000 8,000 8,000
Issued and fully paid: BT MR A
At beginning of year =) 9,015 180,300 1,803 1,803
Share consolidation &t Bt — (171,285) — —
Issue of shares upon exercise 17 {5 ki HE I
of share options AT 24 — 5 —
At end of year FEH 9,039 9,015 1,808 1,803

23.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the

Company at the annual general meeting held on 6 November 2009,

every 20 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued and unissued share

capital of the Company were consolidated into 1 share of HK$0.2

each. The share consolidation became effective on 6 November

2009.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

()

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)
The Pre-IPO Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 12 April 2001 to recognise the contribution of
Executive Directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to the growth of the Group. The options granted
under the scheme grant the right to the holders to subscribe
for new ordinary shares of the Company at HK$12 per
ordinary share (adjusted after share consolidation took place
on 6 November 2009) and the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options might be granted under the scheme
was 720,000 (adjusted after share consolidation took place on
6 November 2009). The number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to any individual was not permitted
to exceed 180,000 (adjusted after share consolidation took
place on 6 November 2009).
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23.

HRIEAS S A R ZFF L4 +— A 78 H 847
2 HE AR G B 2 PR E o AN
2 CEEAT BOR AT IR AS v A 20 I I TR (# 0.01
WO & 0 B 1 IR IR (E 0.2 #s T 2 ey
ey G B IR — B FILFE+— AN HARL -

S B i it 8

0]

0 T vt O T 3 (T 3 B i D JB i) 1)
AN AR ZFEX—FWH +ZH#E
i 2 — TH PR 55 R AN 8 i e R
H o FlE DLBHAC N T B I o W 2 AT
R X B AR A R R AR 2 B
TNCAE E o MR #5227
R A RE R AT 42 1 1B % 28 i 12 9 ot Ot
ZERZIUAE A AN H G A DR A
SR ) GRS A W 2 S A AR R
W] A5 2 W R RE T K 2 e R B
H %5 720,000 & (A ZFEILFE+— AN
HBEO & P& A BT ) o ol 4% T 4T AT
N b2 W I RE WS T 2 e 9 B A1 8 i
180,000 it (A —FE JL4FE +— A 7N H Ik
& PR A i) o
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)
(continued)

Options might be granted without any initial payment.
Options granted are exercisable to the extent of an aggregate
total of 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% at anytime after 6 months,
18 months, 30 months and 42 months, respectively, from the
commencement of the trading of the shares of the Company
on the GEM, and have duration of 10 years from their

respective vesting dates.

Upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM on
8 May 2001, no further options could be granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme. The rights of the
holders of the share options granted prior thereto are not
affected and such options granted continue to remain valid

and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the scheme.
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme during the years

ended 30 June 2011 and 2010.

Exercise price per share

Directors of (Before share (After share

the Company Date of grant consolidation)  consolidation)
L g

AR HS ghnm (Rbraem)  (Rebyafig)
HKS HKS
# #r

Prof. Chan Chok Ki 12 April 2001 0.60 12

RfEREAR “ZZ-ENATZH

Dr. Ma Chi Kit 12 April 2001 0.60 12

Rttt “FZ-FNATZR

Mr. Ho Ka Ho 12 April 2001 0.60 12

RS “FZ-FNATZR

Employees of the Group 12 April 2001 0.60 12

AEMRE “EZ-ENATZH

Exercisable at the end of
the year
R T AT

Weighted average
exercise price

1l aRelrtid

Annual Report 2011 43

23. VR JREAE T (40

Balance at

1 July 2009
REZRNE
tH-0
P41

1,800,000

1,440,000

1,364,000

(@

consolidation

8 B 5 O PR A i 30 T 354 DBt v B R a8 )
(%)

8 5 REE A 37 o S AT o] 90 25 K T 2 47 L
FARIR AT T AR o W ROE AR AN T
AR ZE AR B I B B AR 0 T 43 Rl A T 6 1
A~ 18487 ~ 3018 A K42l A 2 1% Z AT
] IR [ AT MELUR 7 A7 {68 45 3 A B i 1 A
B2 25% ~ 50% > 75% M 100% © % 55 fi
JBEHE B 45 2 B R HOBHREE T 10 RN K -

HAARBGR —FF—FHLH/NHE
AR LR > A2 F S FEAR SR Al
U P e 452 o R P R o A I DA AR
B AN R 2 R A g%
PR B %% T I BOREAR 5 w1

) 2 AR IRA AL 7] T AT AL -

TREBRE T ——F R F—F
NH = Bk R AR A T S A
AR/ 7 2 B 2 S A -

Balance at
30 June

2011

= S
NMZETH
ZEib

Balance at

30 June

2010

e S22
AMEF=H
ZHitk

Lasped
during
the year

Share

et 43 B
(Note 22)
(H22)

TRAERE R

(1,710,000) 90,000 (90,000) -

(1,368,000) 72,000 (72,000) -

(1,295,800 68,200 (68,200) -

4,604,000

1,172,000

(4,373,800) 230,200 (230,200) -

(1,113,400) 58,600 (58,600) -

5,776,000

(5.487.200) 288,800 (288.,800) -

HKS$0.60 77

N/A R

HKS12#6  HKSI2#7C N/A Al f
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

()

(ii)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)
(continued)

No options had been exercised since the date of grant. At 30
June 2011, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme represents 0%
(2010: 3.2%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the
%2003 Option Scheme”)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003, the 2003
Option Scheme was adopted to recognise and motivate the
contribution of the employees and to provide incentives and
help the Company in retaining its existing employees and
recruiting additional employees for a term of ten years. The
Board of Directors of the Company may at its discretion
grant options to any employees, including Executive and

Non-Executive Directors, advisers, consultants, agents,

contractors, customers and suppliers of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Option may be granted
at a consideration of HK$1 and should be accepted within 5
business days from the date of grant. The option granted is
exercisable upon acceptance of and payment of consideration
by the grantee and have a duration of 10 years from their

respective vesting dates.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company on 28 October 2003. No option shall
be granted to a grantee if the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted under the 2003 Option Scheme in any twelve months
period up to and including the date of grant to such grantee
would exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company

for the time being in issue.

The subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Daily Quotation Sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Daily Quotation Sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a share. Without prejudice
to the generality of the above, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options in respect of which the

subscription price is fixed at different price.

23. VR JREAE T (4)

@

(i)
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0 5 v D B A (T OB i Dk JBe i 38 1)
(47)

B $2 A TR 5 Sl S S A AT A o
SR ——AENA =B AR R
%%%%ﬁﬁZ%%%ﬁ&Z%%%a
iR % B AN R EEATRMBZ 0% (=
—RAE 1 32%) o

R R4 N HERAZ B HE
ah 8 (T =R AR W BRE T 31 ])
WRIEHR —FEZ =41+ H T \H#EHz
PR EE > AN E] R AN R T A
R o FE DA R I MY AR B AR A I AE
HERK I AN m LA R B4 T IEE
i DA W B 4% BA A A o DA R BEAT M 5 T
EZFSME R - AN R #E G Y M
AT AT R B 432 1 Bl R HE (0 55 A 45 1 2 3
TERLFUITES - HFE - B R
B RAERT B S ALRER) DL RREAR A
F Ay o BEREARE AT DARAE 1 o > i
JEE A 4% H AR S R S H N BN o
eI N A I AT AR AB RS > i A
AP RMTE > A MO HA B 2R
HHAEE T 2 1 10 4F -

CEad 1 Pl a-7 4l (S NS
WMANFR EE=FTA AR Z
EL AT AR 2 10% o i 78 AF ] + A8 A
HA M B & 4% IR TRz N H A ()
FEeZ H) Ik > BB R G AR T =
A i R ME ST 3 4% RO T B 2 R
REMEAT(H IREAS T 8847 2 Iy A > W ia
RNFERFEETRAZ 1% » AIAATF
HEAS & %2 1 B I o

RIEEAR PR T =ZF 2 RmE - (>1)
ﬁ&ﬂ&%%&ﬁm%ﬁ%i%mﬁ
g R AE R 2 0T ERAE S )AL R R
A B ) H WRT fUR 22 5 H ik H
HAE K 2 P TR AE 5 B (i) B T
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the

(ii)

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

“2003 Option Scheme”) (continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s

share options under the 2003 Option Scheme during the years
ended 30 June 2011 and 2010:

Directors of the Company

ARTHEF

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
BffeAAuR

Dr. Ma Chi Kit
L

Mr. Ho Ka Ho
IpE S

Employees of the Group
ARMfES

Exercisable at the end of
the year

XTI

Weighted average exercise
price

T AT

Date of grant

ghnm

4 August 2004
“ZEMEANA

23 June 2010
“F-FEAACTER
4 August 2004
“FFIEAANA

23 June 2010
“E-FERRCEER
4 August 2004
“ZEWEAANHA

23 June 2010
“E-RERAZEZR

4 August 2004
“REMEAANA

23 June 2010
“Z-THERACTEH

Exercise price per share

(Before share ~ (After share

consolidation)  consolidation)
BRATHER

(BeBrbki) — (Rebrivbiee)

HKS HKS

# #

0.145 29

— 3.98

0.145 29

— 3.98

0.145 29

— 3.98

0.145 29

— 3.98
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23. W BCHEST 3 (&)
R BRZAETH A\ H 8R4 2 0
BEwH# ([ =22 =4 B s 8 1) (81
TRWERE —F—— R —FF
ANHAZ T HIRFEERNAN AR L
A T R S 452 S O S A B S

(i)

Granted Balance at Exercised Balance at
Balance at Share during 30 June during 30 June
1July 2009 consolidation the year 2010 the year 011
R-FRNE R-F-F4 A%k
th-H ARZTH AMETH
25k Rebybh  AERE R M MW 5l
(Note 22)
(it 2)
900,000 (855,000) — 45,000 45,000
— — 90,000 90,000 — 90,000
720,000 (684,000) — 36,000 36,000
— — 90,000 90,000 90,000
680,000 (646,000) — 34,000 — 34,000
- - 90,000 90,000 — 90,000
2,300,000 (2,185,000) 270,000 385,000 — 385,000
80,000 (76,000) — 4,000 — 4,000
— — 60,000 60,000 (24,000) 36,000
2,380,000 (2,261,000) 330,000 449,000 (24,000) 425,000
425,000
HKSO.4SC  NARNER  HKS398HTE  HKSIG9MT  HKS3O8WET  HKS3.68
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the
“2003 Option Scheme”) (continued)

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before 4 August 2004 and 23 June 2010 (date of grant
of the above options) were HK$2.9 (adjusted after share
consolidation took place on 6 November 2009) and HK$3.98,
respectively. At 30 June 2011, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted under the 2003
Option Scheme represents 4.7% (2010: 5.0%) of the shares of

the Company in issue at that date.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is
HK$5.39.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, options were granted on
23 June 2010. The estimated fair value of the options granted
on that date was approximately HK$1,102,000.

The fair value was calculated using The Black-Scholes

pricing model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price HK$3.98
Exercise price HK$3.98
Expected volatility 84.14%
Expected life 10 years
Risk-free interest rate 2.49%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous nine
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural

considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$1,102,000 for the year ended 30 June 2010 in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used to
estimate the fair value of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the Directors’ best estimate with
reference to a valuation report prepared by an independent
professional value. The value of an option varies with

different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

23. VR JREAE T (4)

(i)
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24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

24, JEREBLHAE
NEN B AEAAE B SR A AR > EUERR 2 B
SR TE B e HAs B R

Accelerated Capitaliesd

tax development
depreciation cost Total
IEBEYTE  BRAEARML a5t
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
THTT T#TT THET

THE GROUP A M

At 1 July 2009 W_EFEEELH—H 80 234 314
Charge to profit or loss =Bkl 53 48 37 85
At 30 June 2010 RoFE-FENA=1H 128 271 399
Charge to profit or loss Si=EE0S 7 93 100
At 30 June 2011 R ——4EANH=1H 135 364 499

At 30 June 2011, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$5,542,000 (2010: HK$4,468,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$2,156,000 (2010: HK$1,850,000) that will expire in 2015
through 2016. The remaining tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.
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W E——FRNHA =T H > AREE ] EHK
S ARSI 2 i A B A B TE B 1R 40 4% 5,542,000
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25.

26.

RESERVES 25. faifh
Share
Share options Retained
premium reserve profits Total
JBe 3tk FE i DB i i R 8 A Bsk
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T T Ti#oT T IL T
THE COMPANY A ]
At 1 July 2009 ATELRNAFELH—H 21,646 — 1,568 23,214
Profit for the year A A — — 73 73
Recognition of equity-settled R A 45 5 LA R A 7%
share-based payments FEREAT 3K — 1,102 — 1,102
At 30 June 2010 W —FRFENH=1TH 21,646 1,102 1,641 24,389
Profit for the year AR I — — 4 4
Issue of shares upon TALT ol B A IR A T A A7
exercise of share options 171 (80) — 91
At 30 June 2011 R_R——4EANH=1TH 21,817 1,022 1,645 24,484
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 26. ERH A S

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable in future

years.

The employees of the subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute 8% of the
basic salary of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to

the retirement benefit is to make the specified contribution.

In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit
schemes, the subsidiary in the UK is required to make National
Insurance Contributions for certain of its employees in the
UK based on applicable rate in accordance with the relevant

government regulations.
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 26.

The total costs charged to profit or loss of approximately
HKS$566,000 (2010: HK$517,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of current accounting

period.

27. OPERATING LEASES 27.

Minimum lease payments made under TS A N AR A B Y 2
operating leases in respect of Z BB T K) I 2 eIk
premises during the year LM E

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows:

BARR A G ()
TEE 45 A1 BR 2 88 A £ 566,000 H#E 7T (=% —
ZEAF 517,000 W0 ) £ A S B AS 5t R 1n)
A R B A 2 K

RERAKH
The Group
AR
2011 2010
e e
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T F 8t
1,474 1,362

TR IR > AR B A B 3 2 A AT B A8
B A T R A AR AR AT 2 e ARAL A M 8 2 R I
RS H A

The Group
AR

2011 2010
S R AR
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x N2
Within one year —4E R 1,316 444
In the second to fifth years inclusive BRI (HRWAAEEREAEN) 391 117
1,707 561

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average of

three years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.

The Company has no significant lease commitments at the end of

the reporting period.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. WEALZY
The Group
A M
2011 2010
S B
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T#x THT
Service fee to The City University of Iv) 7 s 3 T A ([ i KB ) S At
Hong Kong (“City University”) IR 5 2 26 68
Scholarship donation to City University [i) 385 117 R B4 Rk 4 B 4 — 18
CityU Enterprises Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of City 517 Etin City Limited (452 &) 2 £ Z )
University, holds a 30% interest in Etin City Limited, a substantial 30% HE fa 2 Sk FEA PR 7 Sy 3k K 2 &
shareholder of the Company. EHHE A A
Compensation of key management personnel B33 NP §il]
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key A AL A BN 2 R
management during the year were as follows:
The Group
A SR
2011 2010
e s
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#rx T
Short-term benefits S 04 A 5,603 4,538
Post-employment benefits il i £ A ) 36 36
Share-based payments DI B Ay 75 HE B AT K — 903
5,639 5,477
The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by R N EEATEON B 2 4TS B N B ik
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of 2 A Il 3R B % i 5 B AR T E o

individuals and market trends.
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RESULTS
eS|

Revenue

Profit before taxation

Income tax (expense)/credit
Profit for the year
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
e K £

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

TeleEye Holdings Limited T B A 2 7
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Year ended 30 June
BREANH=THIL4EE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
SEEREE ZFFNFE SFFNFE FFE ZFB——4F
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T T F#T T T T T
46,635 62,898 52,502 50,616 45,693
2,146 4,638 1,690 2,074 1,319
— (620) 86 (542) (140)

2,146 4,018 1,776 1,532 1,179
2,087 3,997 1,874 1,525 1,206
59 21 (98) 7 27

2,146 4,018 1,776 1,532 1,179

At 30 June
RAH=1H

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
SEFLE CRBANE CEFE CFRE Rk
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
FiB T T T Tz FiETT T#
35,671 40,773 39,642 43,684 45,240
(4,400) (5,577) (4,520) (5,288) (3,967)
31,271 35,196 35,122 38,396 41,273
31,483 35,361 35,389 38,537 41,450
(212) (165) (267) (141) a77
31,271 35,196 35,122 38,396 41,273
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